
 

 
101 West Beach Drive � Panama City, FL 32401 

850.215.1700 � DestinationPanamaCity.com 

 

 

DESTINATION PANAMA CITY  

REGULARLY SCHEDULED QUARTERLY MEETING 

April 12, 2022 

9:00AM (immediately following the City of Panama City Commissioner Meetings) 

 
1) Roll Call 

2) Approval of Minutes – February 8, 2022 

3) Acceptance of TDT Revenue Reports – FY22 Collections thru February  

4) Financial Status Reports period ending February 28, 2022 

5) Acceptance of FY21 Annual Audit  

6) Destination Panama City Board Vacancy & Composition 

7) Ratification of Grant RFP Publication 

8) Proclamation for National Travel & Tourism Week 

9) Approval of Position Description for Sports & Events Liaison Coordinator 

10) CEO Update 

a) Legislative Update 

b) Marketing & Public Relations Update  

11) Adjournment 



 
Approve Minutes 2/8/2022 

 

Panama City Community Development Council 
dba Destination Panama City 

Agenda Item Summary 

1. PRESENTER NAME: 
Jennifer M. Vigil  
President & CEO 

2. MEETING DATE: 
 
4/12/2022 

3. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to Accept Minutes for February 8, 2022 as presented. 

4. AGENDA 
 

PRESENTATION   
PUBLIC HEARING   
CONSENT   
REGULAR   

5.  IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES  NO  IF NO, STATE ACTION REQUIRED  N/A 
      BUDGET ACTION:   
      FINANCIAL IMPACT SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
 
     DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

6.  BACKGROUND:  (WHY IS THE ACTION NECESSARY, WHAT ACTION WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED, (WHO, WHERE, WHEN & HOW) 

 
Minutes for February 8, 2022 are attached for consideration of approval.  
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
101 West Beach Drive � Panama City, FL 32401 

850.215.1700 � DestinationPanamaCity.com 

 

 

DESTINATION PANAMA CITY  

REGULARLY SCHEDULED QUARTERLY MEETING 

MINUTES - February 8, 2022 

 
1) Roll Call – Chairman Jennine Brown, Vice Chairman Nirav Banker, and Board Members, 

Greg Brudnicki, Jenna Haligas, Josh Street, Billy Rader, and Kenneth Brown were all in 

attendance. 

2) Approval of Minutes – October 12, 2021 

a) Board Member Billy Rader motioned to accept the Minute of October 12, 2022 as 

presented. Board Member Kenneth Brown seconded the motion and it passed 

unanimously. 

3) Acceptance of TDT Revenue Reports – FY21 Collections October - September 

4) Acceptance of TDT Revenue Reports – FY22 Collections October – November 

a) The Board took action on both the FY21 and FY22 Revenue Reports collectively with 

Board Member Greg Brudnicki making the motion to accept as presented. Vice 

Chairman Nirav Banker seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 

5) Financial Status Reports period ending (pending) – This item was pulled from the 

agenda as the Financial Status Report was not available on time to make the meeting 

agenda packet publication. 

6) Acceptance of Longwoods Destination Research Report 

a) CEO Vigil briefly went over the Longwoods Destination Research Report that 

provided visitor point of origin, length of stay, market share, and overnight vs day 

trip research analysis that will better equip the team to make the best marketing 

decisions possible.  CEO Vigil also noted that Chairman Jennine Brown set the bar 

high as the GM of La Quinta as it was the only hotel to claim double digit market 

share for visitors.  

b) Board Member Greg Brudnicki motioned to accept the research report. Vice 

Chairman Nirav Banker seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 

7) Huddle Group - Sports Tourism Final Report & Presentation – Eric Olson 



 

 
101 West Beach Drive � Panama City, FL 32401 

850.215.1700 � DestinationPanamaCity.com 

a) Eric Olson, Principle and Huddle Up Group, gave a detailed presentation on the 

Sports Tourism study they completed and the Huddle Up Group immediate, short-

term, and long-term recommendations. 

i) Those recommendations included, but were not limited to: 

(1) A sports liaison that can navigate between event organizers, facility owners, 

and Destination Panama City for the recruitment and retention of quality 

events.  

(2) Advocate for artificial turf at Tommy Oliver Stadium – the maintenance of 

the natural grass field precludes the facility from being used more 

frequently and from a variety of non-traditional uses.  

(3) Conversation of funding the various short-term and long-term initiatives 

began with recommendations from Eric Olson on how other communities 

had created revenue streams. 

(a) Board Member Joshua Street inquired about the City’s 1% merchant fee 

being assessed on hotel room nights.  Vice Chairman Banker and 

Chairman Jennine Brown, as the only two hotel partners on the board, 

stated they didn’t believe hoteliers would have issue with the 

implementation because it would just be a pass through – not a cost. Vice 

Chairman Nirav Banker stated the hotels on Panama City Beach already 

pay the 1% and it would just level the playing field and provide funding 

for some of these necessary initiatives.  

(b) Board Member Joshua Street also inquired about collections and CEO 

Vigil explained that the tourist development tax did not go through the 

city it was a county tax and all three destination marketing organizations 

in Bay County had their revenue collected by the Clerk of Court. All 

DMO’s have been satisfied with the collection and enforcement services 

provided by the Clerk of Court as well.  

(c) Board Member Brudnicki stated he believed the hotels should pay the 

1% and that the recommendation of a shared position would also be an 

acceptable and more immediate solution to the issue of staffing.  He 



 

 
101 West Beach Drive � Panama City, FL 32401 

850.215.1700 � DestinationPanamaCity.com 

stated the growth potential for traditional and non-traditional sporting 

events was available. 

(d) Board Member Jenna Haligas reiterated the sentiment of non-traditional 

and traditional sports and shared her experience as a parent of children 

that play travel sports. She also stated her support for the hotels to be 

included in the 1% and for the shared position.  

b) Chris O’Brien, Richard Sanders, and Dan Rowe, from Visit Panama City Beach were 

all present and provided supporting comments. 

c) Based on a consensus of the Board, CEO Vigil was directed to pursue the 

development of a shared position, and to find potential funding sources (grants, etc.) 

for artificial turf at Tommy Oliver Stadium. 

8) Ratification of Fahlgren Mortine Marketing Agency of Record Renewal  

a) Motion was made by Vice Chairman Nirav Banker to ratify CEO Vigil’s execution of 

the 1 year contract renewal with Fahlgren Mortine.  Board Member Kenneth Brown 

seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 

9) Consideration Grant Writing Assistance 

a) CEO Vigil explained with ongoing special projects such as the Sports Tourism 

initiatives, and the Creative Cultural Center at St Andrews School that she needed 

professional grant writing and administrative services assistance.  She asked the 

board for permission to develop and RFP for publication to secure these services.  

b) The consensus of the Board was that she needed to pursue all alternatives for grant 

writing and administrative services assistance to move the projects forward.  

10) CEO Update – CEO Vigil provided an updated on the LovePC campaign and its intent to 

move the needle of city sentiment and public pride in a more positive direction.  She 

stated the organization had paid its last invoice to Anderson Construction and the bullet 

list had been completed. The facility is 100% complete. She provided an update on the 

meeting space rental activity, an update on prior and upcoming events, and that the 

annual audit was about 90% complete.  

 



 
Acceptance of TDT Revenue 

 

Panama City Community Development Council 
dba Destination Panama City 

Agenda Item Summary 

1. PRESENTER NAME: 
Jennifer M. Vigil  
President & CEO 

2. MEETING DATE: 
 
4/12/2022 

3. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to Accept TDT Revenue Reports for as presented. 

4. AGENDA 
 

PRESENTATION   
PUBLIC HEARING   
CONSENT   
REGULAR   

5.  IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES  NO  IF NO, STATE ACTION REQUIRED  N/A 
      BUDGET ACTION:   
      FINANCIAL IMPACT SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
 
     DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

6.  BACKGROUND:  (WHY IS THE ACTION NECESSARY, WHAT ACTION WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED, (WHO, WHERE, WHEN & HOW) 

 
Clerk of Court TDT division collects revenue and provides the attached reports. 
 
Destination Panama City creates the TDT Monthly Analysis report, also attached.  
 
 
 
 
 

 



�

�

�
�

���������	
�
���
�����������������������������
�

�
����������� ��!"#��$%&%'�()%��� �*+�,�#��-.."/%���*�0123+��,���)���"��+�4'�!"5���21631�

7*(!%##�$%'"&%!�8��119�:/;%�<"%�=&%+�,���)���"��+�4'�!"5���21630�
�����,>��%8�?@93A�B6BC911D������4�*8�?@93A�B6BC9101������

�E"#"���#���8��>��(#8FF $�G������'%!HG/�)F ��!"#� �*F���7)�"'8�� $�I������'%!HG/�)�

,���)���"���

�

�

�

JKJLMJKJJ�NO�

PQ�RMRLMJJ

JKJKMJKJL�NO�

PQ�RMRLMJL

STUVTWXY STUVTWXY�Z JKJKMJKJL�

[\]N̂ �RMRLMJJ

_X̀ abcdeacfbag���� aehdhiifjig���� acdakefikg���� aifabl abbdikifckg�����

]Pm ahjdnjcfajg���� ahednkefeeg���� idhaifnig������ ofcjl ahednkefeeg�����

pYX nodohkfabg������ jjdjibfoag������ akdkiefjeg���� eafoel cadakhfbcg�������

qTW ahjdakefaig���� jkdaijfcig������ badhhofbhg���� ohfjal jkdbjefkjg�������

[Yr ahbdcenfcbg���� codoabfkeg������ andoakfeag���� ebfhhl cidbkafjag�������

sTUtuYv bnefekg���������� bnefkcg����������

wwLxyz{|zw}���� ~{Lx�Rw|wR}���� yKxJwL|RJ}���� Ly|wwZ ~�yx~JJ|z~}�����



�

�

�
�

���������	
�
���
�����������������������������
�

�

����������� ��!"#��$%&%'�()%��� �*+�,�#��-.."/%���*�0123+��,���)���"��+�4'�!"5���21631�

7*(!%##�$%'"&%!�8��119�:/;%�<"%�=&%+�,���)���"��+�4'�!"5���21630�

�����,>��%8�?@93A�B6BC911D������4�*8�?@93A�B6BC9101������

�E"#"���#���8��>��(#8FF $�G������'%!HG/�)F ��!"#� �*F���7)�"'8�� $�I������'%!HG/�)�

�

�



 
Approval of Financial Status 

 

Panama City Community Development Council 
dba Destination Panama City 

Agenda Item Summary 

1. PRESENTER NAME: 
Jennifer M. Vigil  
President & CEO 

4/12/2022 

2. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approve Financial Reports for period ending February 2022 

4. AGENDA 
 

PRESENTATION   
PUBLIC HEARING   
CONSENT   
REGULAR   

5.  IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES  NO  IF NO, STATE ACTION REQUIRED  N/A 
      BUDGET ACTION:   
      FINANCIAL IMPACT SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
 
     DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

6.  BACKGROUND:  (WHY IS THE ACTION NECESSARY, WHAT ACTION WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED, (WHO, WHERE, WHEN & HOW) 

 
Accounting staff has prepared the Financial reports. Staff request approval on financials as presented. 
 
 
 

 



������

����	�
�	����	������
�� ��������																										

�����
��	������� �� �!�!																													

"���#$
�	%	&��
���� ����'(																															

)�����
*	+	,������	�
�� ����'�   																									

����-�
�	&��	�#�.�$��� /(���(0																																

���! ���'�																							

12�34	3�����

12�34	4536545���

7536545�5��	389	:��	;2�5�528

<���������= +�																																			

�����
��	#�>��� �����'																															

?���	#�>��� �!��� 																															

@���	������	���������� �''�'''																													

A#����� �� ��� 																													

12�34	4536545�5��

?�	#������
= ��!����  																									

B8C���C5D��9	8��	E2�5�528

���! ���'�																							

12�34	4536545�5��	389	8��	E2�5�528

FGHIJ	IKLGMNL	OIJIHPNQ	RIS	TIUS	VUWR	GHMNUGR	VGHIHPGIJ	UNXWUMQY

ZHMNUGR	VGHIHPGIJ	UNXWUMGH[\	VWU	GHMNUHIJ	RIHI[NRNHM	KQN	WHJS

;383]3	̂5�_	̂2]]̀ 85�_	a�b�42E]�8�	̂2̀8D54c	d8De

f�3��]�8�	2g	:��	;2�5�528c	hijhkZlmk

n�6C̀3C_	opc	oqoo

rstu	v	wx	y



���������	�
�� �	�
������������ �����������	�
��� ����������	���

���������

�����
������������

�� �!�	�� ���!�!������� "#$%$#&'"(���������������� "#$%$#&'"(����������������� '&"#&"'(��������������������

�� �!�	�� �!��� �)��*����+����	� %,-#."/��������������������� %,-#."/����������������������� ��������������������������������

+����	����0�����1� ������������������������������� �������������������������������� ��������������������������������

������11�
������	��0!�!�! ������������������������������� ��������������������������������� �������������������������������� "#'/2���������������������������

������1����
����������� "#'22#222������������������ ��������������������������������� "#'22#222������������������� '&%#"2'�����������������������

31��������	�

���������4������������1�
 ������������������������������� �������������������������������� ""2������������������������������

)��1�1� ������ ������������������������������� �������������������������������� "#2'2���������������������������

)��1�1� ������������5�6�� ������������������������������� �������������������������������� &-2������������������������������

0��������16�7������1�� ������������������������������� �������������������������������� -$,������������������������������

31��������	 ������������������������������� �������������������������������� &/��������������������������������

8�����6���9������� ������������������������������� �������������������������������� "#,$%���������������������������

:�����91�������	� ������������������������������� �������������������������������� "$#-22�������������������������

����9������ ������������������������������� �������������������������������� "$#2.&�������������������������

3���9���1����� ������������������������������� �������������������������������� ��������������������������������

8������1�;������ ������������������������������� �������������������������������� %.#.,/�������������������������

�������1��������	 ������������������������������� ��������������������������������� �������������������������������� ,/#///�������������������������

�

<=>?@��������� "#'22#222������������������ ��������������������������������� "#'22#222������������������� '/%#"2.�����������������������

ABC������

0����������1�� %""#2%'��������������������� %""#2%'����������������������� "2&#"-&�����������������������

D�����1�
��5�����

�����0��E�1�����:���1�� '#222�������������������������� '#222��������������������������� ��������������������������������

�����0��E�1�����:���1������ ������������������������������� �������������������������������� ��������������������������������

���������	��1�
�7��	�1�1�
 &"#222����������������������� &"#222������������������������� &$#'.-�������������������������

�����D�9���!�������	���:�� '#222�������������������������� '#222��������������������������� '#.'/���������������������������

�����D�9���!�������	���:����	� ",-#$.2��������������������� ",-#$.2����������������������� -"#.&$�������������������������

����������������0����1�� &-#222����������������������� &-#222������������������������� ,#2&&���������������������������

�����F�����EE��������85���� -#222�������������������������� -#222��������������������������� &-,������������������������������

�����!���	�1���1���:���1�� "&#222����������������������� "&#222������������������������� %#'%-���������������������������

�����)��1
9��7�0���
��:���1�� "-#222����������������������� "-#222������������������������� &2"������������������������������

�����G�1�1� �:���1�� "2#&22����������������������� "2#&22������������������������� %#$2%���������������������������

�����+������7�H��� ,#%,2�������������������������� ,#%,2��������������������������� &#$,2���������������������������

�������	����� &2#222����������������������� &2#222������������������������� "#2&/���������������������������

�����+���1��7�3�1���������:�� ".#222����������������������� ".#222������������������������� "#"$%���������������������������

�����0�1��1�
�7��1��1�
 &-#222����������������������� &-#222������������������������� %/#.,,�������������������������

�����0�����1��������1�1�1� .-2#222��������������������� .-2#222����������������������� -"2#2%&�����������������������

�����D�9���!	������!9��
� "-#222����������������������� "-#222������������������������� ,#'%.���������������������������

�����DEE1���:	���1� "#222�������������������������� "#222��������������������������� /$%������������������������������

�����D�����1�
�:	���1� &2#222����������������������� &2#222������������������������� /#,',���������������������������

��������;�0	6�1���1���3��6��91� &-#222����������������������� &-#222������������������������� "$#/-&�������������������������

��������1�1�
 .#-22�������������������������� .#-22��������������������������� ",%������������������������������

�����D�����1�����+������)���!���1�
��� %&.#$%&��������������������� %&.#$%&����������������������� ��������������������������������

!��1����D	��� �

������	1��1�
 �������������������������������� ��������������������������������

�����3��91��� �7�8I	1����� -#222�������������������������� -#222��������������������������� ""#--/�������������������������

<=>?@�ABC����� "#'22#222������������������ ��������������������������������� "#'22#222������������������� .//#'&.�����������������������

J�>�KL?�M��N����>�C=�N>N=� �(���������������������������� �(������������������������������ �(����������������������������� /%#&'2(�����������������������

J�>�C=�N>N=�OP�MN��N�M�=Q�R�?S "#.&,#2.-�������������������

J�>�C=�N>N=�O��T�=Q�R�?S "#'"/#%--(�����������������

UVWXY�XZ[V\][�̂XYXW_]̀�aXb�cXdb�edfa�VW\]dVa�eVWXW_VXY�d]gfd\̀h

iW\]dVa�eVWXW_VXY�d]gfd\VWjk�efd�VW\]dWXY�aXWXj]a]W\�Z̀]�fWYb

l?�?m?�nN>R�n=mm��N>R�o���@=Cm��>�n=��KN@p�q�Kr

s>?>�m��>�=Q���������p�ABC�����p�?�T�nL?�M���N��J�>�l=�N>N=��tuvtwixyw

z=S�>L��C�SN=T���T�T�z�P�?SR�{|p�{}{{

~����������



 
Acceptance of FY21 Audit 

 

Panama City Community Development Council 
dba Destination Panama City 

Agenda Item Summary 

1. PRESENTER NAME: 
Jennifer M. Vigil  
President & CEO 

2. MEETING DATE: 
 
4/12/2022 

3. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Accept the Annual Audit performed by CRI for FY21 

4. AGENDA 
 

PRESENTATION   
PUBLIC HEARING   
CONSENT   
REGULAR   

5.  IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES  NO  IF NO, STATE ACTION REQUIRED  N/A 
      BUDGET ACTION:   
      FINANCIAL IMPACT SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
 
     DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

6.  BACKGROUND:  (WHY IS THE ACTION NECESSARY, WHAT ACTION WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED, (WHO, WHERE, WHEN & HOW) 

 
Independent auditors Carr, Riggs, and Ingram have completed the Annual Audit for FY21.  
 
Note of Interest:  
Due to COVID-19, the FY21 Audit has mention of a Paycheck Protection Loan that was taken at board direction 
during FY21 during the second round of CARES Act funding. This loan was completely forgiven in February 
2022 in the amount of $47,330. 
 
CEO Vigil recommends accepting the FY21 Audit as presented.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



�

�

�

�

�

�

�

����������	��
������	�

���
������
������������
�

���������������������
�

�������� ��! !"�

�

�

�

�

�

�





�������������	���
������
���

�������������������

������������������������ �!�"�����������!#�$��%�

�����������#�&!������

�'()*+�),�+-'�./,0,1/02��+0+'3',+4�

5��6� �����������6�������"�����7���������!����������������6��8�������9��"������ ����������6��

������������������������ �!�"�����������!#�$��%�:������!;�:�����"��������7���<�����;#���

���"������������������������#�&!�����#����������������6�������������=�"���8���>?#�@?@A#�����

�6����!����������������������!�����������#�B6��6���!!���� �!�����"������6��������!C��8�������������!�

��������������!����������6����8!�������������%�

D0,0E'3',+4��'4(),4/F/2/+G�H)*�+-'�./,0,1/02��+0+'3',+4�

I���7������������"����8!�������6��"��"�����������������"����������������6������������!�

�������������������������B��6����������7�"�����"!���7�����!!������"��������6��J������=���������

K������L��6������!������6������7�#���"!����������#���������������������������!�������!���!� ����

����6��"��"�����������������"�����������������������!�������������6������������������������!�

������������#�B6��6������������������������%�

�MN/+)*4��'4(),4/F/2/+G�

O������"����8�!�����������P"���������"����������6������������!������������8�����������������%�5��

����������������������������������B��6��������7�����������7�����!!������"��������6��J������=������

���K������������6�������������""!���8!�������������!���������������������QRSTUVWTVX�YZ[\X\V]�

X̂_V[_U[̀#��������8���6�����"���!!���a�����!�����6��J������=�����%�b6����������������c������6���B��

"!�������"��������6������������8������������8!�������������8����B6��6����6����������!������������

���������������������!�������������%�

K���������� �! ���"��������7�"��������������8������������ ��������8�����6��������������

����!�����������6����������!�����������%�b6��"������������!��������"��������6����������C�d��7����#�

���!����7��6�����������������6�����e������������!������������������6����������!�����������#�B6��6���

���������������������%�$����e��7��6�������e������������#��6���������������������������!�������!�

��!� ��������6��������C��"��"�����������������"����������������6����������!������������������������

����7��������"�����������6��������""��"����������6���������������#�8������������6��"��"�������

�P"������7�����"����������6��������� ����������6��������C���������!�������!%�K�������7!�#�B���P"�����

������6��"�����%�K���������!������!������ �!�����7��6���""��"����������������������7�"�!�����������

�����6���������8!�����������7������������������7����������������8������7�����#����B�!!����

� �!�����7��6��� ���!!�"����������������6����������!�����������%�



������

��������	��
��
�
������
��	������������	����
�����������������
��������������
��
�����	������������

����������
����������

��������

���������������
��������������
�
����
�����������
�����	��������
������ �����������
������������
���


�����������������
�������
�����������
 �����
�	�
�������
���!������"�
 �"�����
 �#�	�������
�

"������������������$��
������%&���&�'������
�������(�������
����������������
����������
�������������

����
��� ����
��������������������������
�������
��(������������(������� ������
������
���)��
���

$
�
������*��������

�+,-.�/0++-.1�

2���(����
��������

���
�������(����
3�������������������� �����������
����
��
������
��(�

�����������(������� ������
������
���)��
���$
�
������*���������4����
�����������
���
��

��������
�
��������������������
�
����
���$���������(��������
�������
��(����
������
����
���

�����������������
�
����
��������4������ �
���5�	������
���*����
��(�$
��������6���������

�����������
�
�������������
�������
�������������������
��(�����������(�
��������������������
�
����
��

���������������
�������
�����������������������
����������
�7
��8�������������
�������������������

�
�
����
�������
������
���� �
����������(��������
�����

�+,-.�9-��.+��:�9-;<�.-=�>?�@ABCDEFCEG�HIJKGKEL�MGNEJNDJO�

����������������
��PQRSTUVSUW�XYZ[W[U\�]ŴUẐTZ_�������	���������������������
���
���2�����

''���&�������������������
�������!������"�
 �"�����
 �#�	�������
�"�����������3����
������

���
�����	������������������
��(�����������
��
������
���������������
�����
�������	����������������

��(��
���������
���
�������(���
��(������
�������
������

�����̀�������������
��
������
����

����� �
�����������
���������������
��
��(������
���������
�����	������������������
��(�����

���������������
�������
�����
��
�
��
��(��������
�
�����	������������������
��������
�	���������

!������"�
 �"�����
 �#�	�������
�"�����������3����
���������
�����	������������������
��(����

���������������̀��
������
���������
�(�������
����������
���������������������������
��

PQRSTUVSUW�XYZ[W[U\�]ŴUẐTZ_��������������(�!������"�
 �"�����
 �#�	�������
�"�������

����3����
���������
�����	������������������
��(�����������������

"��
������!�����*����
��
��

!������"�
 �6������a�������

2�����''���&���



����������	��
������	����
������
������������

��������
������
����
��

��������� �!"#!$�!�%�&��'���!�#!%�$'�(� �'%��)�%��&��)#!�!�#�(�&%�%���!%&*�

+�,�+�

-./0.12.3�456�7578� 9:&#!�&&+%" ��;�%#<#%#�&�+�=!%�' '#&��>:!?&

@����

A:''�!%��&&�%&

A�&���!?���&���B:#<�(�!%& CDEFGH,I��������������

;���:!%&�'���#<�J(�F�!�% EEKFKCL���

M'� �#?& NLFDOO

��%�(��:''�!%��&&�%& DLGFL,N���

A� #%�(��&&�%&F�!�% EF,GEFNLD

��%�(��&&�%& EFLKLFNNG�������������

P��Q������

A:''�!%�(#�J#(#%#�&

;���:!%&� �"�J(���!?����':�?��R �!&�& KDFHH,�����

;?<�!���?� �&#%& EOOFOOO

S!��'!�?�'�<�!:� NLFDOO

T�%�� �"�J(� CGF,,O

��%�(��:''�!%�(#�J#(#%#�& NCNFGE,���

��%�(��(#�J#(#%#�& NCNFGE,���

����
����
�

T�%�#!<�&%��!%�#!��� #%�(��&&�%& EF,GEFNLD

S!'�&%'#�%�? ,DDFNEL

��%�(�!�%� �&#%#�! EFGNKFDECI�����������



����������	��
������	����
������
������������

��������
���������������������������������
����
��

� !�"##$%&"'()'*�'$+!,�"-!�"'�)'+!*-".�&"-+�$/�+ !,!�/)'"'#)".�,+"+!%!'+,0�

1�2�1�

�

3�4�����������

5"(�6$7'+(��86�#$'+-"#+ 9:9;<:=<9>�����������

?-$%$+)$'".�&-$*-"% @A:<B@�������������������

�$+".�$&!-"+)'*�-!C!'7!, 9:;DA:E<<�������������

3�4������������

8!&-!#)"+)$' ;BB

F"#).)+(�%")'+!'"'#! 9=:B=B

G',7-"'#! D;:;;A

H//)#! 9;:<BE�������������������

H+ !- 9@:;9@

?"(-$.. 9;@:;EA

?$,+"*!�"'I�, )&&)'* 9@<

?-$/!,,)$'".�,!-C)#!, DE<:ADD

?-$%$+)$'".�"#+)C)+)!, 2;A:<22

?7J.)#"+)$', 9@:AEE

�-"C!. ;:9;9

K+).)+)!,:�+!.!& $'!�"'I�)'+!-'!+ D;:@<@

�$+".�$&!-"+)'*�!L&!',!, BA;:;9A�����������������

H&!-"+)'*�)'#$%! D:;22:9A;�������������

�
�
�4�����������

G'+!-!,+�)'#$%! 2DB�������������������������

�$+".�'$'$&!-"+)'*�-!C!'7!, 2DB�������������������������

�������������
����
� D:;22:EB9�������������

����
����
��M�N��������
��	�4 ;@D:@99

����
����
��M����
��	�4 D:A9E:=D2>�����������

OPQR�STUPU�VPWXPYZPR�[\]�̂\̂_�����������������������57,)'!,,1+(&!�̀#+)C)+)!,�1�a'+!-&-),!�F7'I,

�



����������	��
������	����
������
������������

��������
���������
���

������� !"�#$%#&�# '�(��)���#�%#'�&)�*�"�)'� +�'��(��+%#�#�%�*�('�'�!�#'(,�

-�.�-�

�

/�0����1�2��������

3�(��)���%4�5�+) !�%#'�)& 4�)#!�#'�*�)�4�#6� 789:;8;.;<�����������

3�(��)���%4�5�+) !�!%(��**�#� 6(� "�)�'%#&���'%4%'%�( =>8?@=�������������������

3�(��"�%5�' �(6""*%�)(�+ )�&  5(��#5�(�)4%��( A>.98?9>B���������������

3�(��"�%5�' ��!"* $��(�+ )�(�)4%��( A7:C8.;>B���������������

D�'���(��") 4%5�5�E$� "�)�'%#&���'%4%'%�( 987;78=@>�������������

�������1�2��������

F#'�)�('�%#� !� :9@�������������������������

G6)���(�� +���"%'�*��((�'( A98;?78;C=B������������

D�'���(��6(�5�%#�%#4�('%#&���'%4%'%�( A98;?98@:@B������������

��������1�2��������

G) ���5(�+) !�G�$����H�G) '��'% #�G) &)�!�# '��"�$�E*� :>8;;?�������������������

D�'���(��") 4%5�5�E$�+%#�#�%#&���'%4%'%�( :>8;;?�������������������

I������1�����������J������K�������� A798>77B������������������

�������J������K���������L�M1�����1�
��	�0 :>;8.?.�����������������

�������J������K���������L��J�
��	�0 :.98>=;<��������������

N�
��������
��
��/�0����1����
�

�
�I��������0
��JJ�M	�/�0����1�

2��������

O"�)�'%#&�%#� !� 98;::87>;<�����������

P5Q6('!�#'(�' �)�� #�%*�� "�)�'%#&�

%#� !��' �#�'���(��") 4%5�5�

E$� "�)�'%#&���'%4%'%�(

R�")��%�'% # ;@@�������������������������

F#�)��(��%#��((�'(

P�� 6#'(�)���%4�E*�8�#�' A99C8C:@B���������������

G)�"�%5( A7C8C7.B������������������

F#�)��(��%#�*%�E%*%'%�(

P�� 6#'(�"�$�E*���#5����)6�5��S"�#(�( 98@@@���������������������

T#��)#�5�)�4�#6� 7@8.??�������������������

� '�*��5Q6('!�#'( A9998;>CB���������������

D�'���(��") 4%5�5�E$� "�)�'%#&���'%4%'%�( 987;78=@><�����������

UVWX�YZ[V[�\V]̂V_̀ VX�abc�dbde������������������������f6(%#�((-'$"��P�'%4%'%�(�-�g#'�)")%(��h6#5(

�
�



����������	��
������	����
������
������������

�
����
��������������������

������

�

�

�
���������� !�"����#�������$����"��$��#��"%���&��

�

'()(*(�+,-.�+/**0),-.�12324/5*2)-�+/0)6,47�8)69�:+/0)6,4;�,<�(�)/)5=/>,-�6/=5/=(-,/)�/=?(),@2A7�/)�

B6-/C2=�DE7�FEGH7�0)A2=�+I(5-2=��GJ�/>�-I2�KLMNOPQ�RSQSTSUV�WI/<2�50=5/<2�,<�-/�5=/3,A2�<055/=-�>/=�-I2�

X(.�+/0)-.�Y/0=,<-�12324/5*2)-�+/0)6,47�-I2�X/(=A�/>�+/0)-.�+/**,<<,/)2=<�/>�X(.�+/0)-.7�Z4/=,A(7�

()A�WI2=2�)/-�,)�6/)>4,6-�W,-I�-I/<2�-W/7�-I2�+,-.�/>�'()(*(�+,-.7�Z4/=,A(9�YI2�+/0)6,4�,<�A2<,?)2A�-/�

5=/*/-2�(�5/<,-,32�,*(?2�>/=�'()(*(�+,-.7�,)6=2(<2�-/0=,<*7�()A�6//=A,)(-2�-I2�*(=[2-,)?�2>>/=-<�/>�-I2�

-/-(4�-/0=,<*�6/**0),-.9�YI2�+/0)6,4�,<�5=,*(=,4.�>0)A2A�>=/*�-I2�-/0=,<-�A2324/5*2)-�-(\2<�6/4426-2A�

W,-I,)�-I2�'()(*(�+,-.�Y/0=,<-�12324/5*2)-�Y(\�1,<-=,6-7�5=/3,A2A�-I=/0?I�(�6/)-=(6-�W,-I�-I2�+/0)6,4�

()A�-I2�X/(=A�/>�+/0)-.�+/**,<<,/)2=<9�

�

]̂_̀abcde�fdbcbg�

�

Z/=�>,)()6,(4�=25/=-,)?�50=5/<2<7�-I2�+/0)6,4�,<�6/)<,A2=2A�(�6/*5/)2)-�0),-�/>�X(.�+/0)-.7�Z4/=,A(h�YI2�

+/0)6,4i<�>,)()6,(4�<-(-2*2)-<�I(32�C22)�,)640A2A�,)�X(.�+/0)-.7�Z4/=,A(i<�>,)()6,(4�<-(-2*2)-<�(<�(�

A,<6=2-24.�5=2<2)-2A�6/*5/)2)-�0),-9�1,<6=2-24.�5=2<2)-2A�6/*5/)2)-�0),-<�(=2�=25/=-2A�,)�(�<25(=(-2�

6/40*)�,)�X(.�+/0)-.7�Z4/=,A(i<�>,)()6,(4�<-(-2*2)-<�-/�2*5I(<,@2�-I(-�-I2�+/0)6,4�,<�(�42?(44.�<25(=(-2�

2)-,-.9�YI2�(66/0)-,)?�5/4,6,2<�/>�-I2�+/0)6,4�6/)>/=*�-/�?2)2=(44.�(6625-2A�(66/0)-,)?�5=,)6,542<�

:jkk';�(<�(554,2A�-/�?/32=)*2)-(4�0),-<9�YI2�*/=2�<,?),>,6()-�(66/0)-,)?�5/4,6,2<�0<2A�C.�-I2�+/0)6,4�

(=2�A2<6=,C2A�C24/W9�

�

l m̂noâp̂ db�q̀rons�tmncn�̀u�vrr̀odbcdes�mdw�qcdmdrcmx�ybmb̂p̂ db�zân̂dbmbc̀d�

�

YI2�(66/0)-,)?�()A�>,)()6,(4�=25/=-,)?�-=2(-*2)-�,<�A2-2=*,)2A�C.�-I2�(554,6(C42�*2(<0=2*2)-�>/60<�

()A�C(<,<�/>�(66/0)-,)?9�{2(<0=2*2)-�>/60<�,)A,6(-2<�-I2�-.52�/>�=2</0=62<�C2,)?�*2(<0=2A�<06I�(<�

|TNNU}S�~O}Q}|OQL�NUVMTN|UV�/=�U|M}M�O|�NUVMTN|UV9�YI2�C(<,<�/>�(66/0)-,)?�,)A,6(-2<�-I2�-,*,)?�/>�

-=()<(6-,/)<�/=�232)-<�>/=�=26/?),-,/)�,)�-I2�>,)()6,(4�<-(-2*2)-<9��

�

YI2�+/0)6,4i<�>0)A�,<�(=2�=25/=-2A�0<,)?�-I2�U|M}M�O|�NUVMTN|UV��UQVTNU�U}S�>/60<�()A�-I2�Q||NTQL�

�QVOV�M~�Q||MT}SO}�9��

�

vnn̂bns��̂ûaâw��obux̀�ns��cm�cxcbĉns��̂ûaâw��dux̀�ns�mdw��̂b�z̀ncbc̀d�

�

�QV��Q}P��QV����TO�QLU}SV�

�

YI2�+/0)6,4i<�6(<I�()A�6(<I�2�0,3(42)-<�(=2�6/)<,A2=2A�-/�C2�6(<I�/)�I()A7�A2*()A�A25/<,-<7�()A�<I/=-�

-2=*�I,?I4.�4,�0,A�,)32<-*2)-<�W,-I�/=,?,)(4�*(-0=,-,2<�/>�-I=22�*/)-I<�/=�42<<�>=/*�-I2�A(-2�/>�

(6�0,<,-,/)9��

�

�U|UO�Q�LUV�Q}P��Q�Q�LUV�

�

k66/0)-<�=262,3(C42���k)�(*/0)-�>/=�0)C,442A�=232)02<�,<�=26/=A2A�>/=�<2=3,62<�=2)A2=2A7�C0-�)/-�.2-�

C,442A�(<�/>�-I2�2)A�/>�-I2�>,<6(4�.2(=9��YI2�=262,3(C42�,<�A2=,32A�>=/*�>0)A�=2�02<-<�<0C*,--2A�-/�-I2�

+/0)-.�)/-�.2-�=262,32A�C.��25-2*C2=�DE7�FEFG9�



����������	��
������	����
������
������������

�
����
��������������������

������

�

�

�
���������� !�"����#�������$����"��$��#��"%���&��'�
�����()�

�

*++,-+.�/,0,11,2�34-0567+.�89:;959-9,+.�/,0,11,2�<=0567+.�:=2�>,-�?6+9-96=�@A6=-9=4,2B�

�

CDDEFGHIJ�KEL�MENOPKND�GIIENHPQ�R�PSJ�TENHIUD�VLEWUMJQ�KEL�MENOPKND�GIIENHPQ�OGQJM�EH�JXVJLUJHIJ�GHM�

GHGDYQUQ�EK�UHMUWUMNGD�GIIENHPZ��[SJH�PSJ�IEDDJIPGOUDUPY�EK�G�LJIJUWGODJ�OJIE\JQ�]NJQPUEHGODĴ�GH�

GDDEFGHIJ�KEL�MENOPKND�GIIENHPQ�UQ�JQPGODUQSJMZ��[SJH�QVJIUKUI�GIIENHPQ�GLJ�MJPJL\UHJM�PE�OJ�

NHIEDDJIPGODĴ�PSJY�GLJ�FLUPPJH�EKK�OY�ISGL_UH_�PSJ�GDDEFGHIJ�GHM�ILJMUPUH_�PSJ�LJIJUWGODJZ��CQ�EK�

J̀VPJ\OJL�ab̂�cbcd̂�PSJLJ�FGQ�HE�GDDEFGHIJ�KEL�MENOPKND�GIIENHPQ�GQ�\GHG_J\JHP�IEHQUMJLQ�GDD�

LJIJUWGODJQ�PE�OJ�IEDDJIPUODJZ�

�

?1,e:92+�

�

TJLPGUH�VGY\JHPQ�PE�WJHMELQ�LJKDJIP�IEQPQ�GVVDUIGODJ�PE�KNPNLJ�GIIENHPUH_�VJLUEMQ�GHM�GLJ�LJIELMJM�

GQ�VLJVGUMQZ�fSJ�IEQP�EK�VLJVGUMQ�UQ�LJIELMJM�GQ�GH�JXVJHQJ�FSJH�IEHQN\JM�LGPSJL�PSGH�FSJH�

VNLISGQJMZ�

�

A:e9-:5�*++,-+�

�

TGVUPGD�GQQJPQ�GLJ�MJKUHJM�OY�PSJ�TENHIUD�GQ�GQQJPQ�FUPS�UHUPUGD̂�UHMUWUMNGD�IEQPQ�EK�\ELJ�PSGH�gd̂bbb�GHM�

JQPU\GPJM�NQJKND�DUWJQ�UH�JXIJQQ�EK�EHJ�YJGLZ�CQ�PSJ�TENHIUD�IEHQPLNIPQ�EL�GI]NULJQ�GMMUPUEHGD�IGVUPGD�GQQJPQ�

JGIS�VJLUEM̂�PSJY�GLJ�IGVUPGDUhJM�GHM�LJVELPJM�GP�SUQPELUIGD�IEQPZ�fSJ�LJVELPJM�WGDNJ�JXIDNMJQ�HEL\GD�

\GUHPJHGHIJ�GHM�LJVGULQ�FSUIS�GLJ�JQQJHPUGDDY�G\ENHPQ�QVJHP�UH�LJDGPUEH�PE�IGVUPGD�GQQJPQ�PSGP�ME�HEP�

UHILJGQJ�PSJ�IGVGIUPY�EL�JKKUIUJHIY�EK�PSJ�UPJ\�EL�UHILJGQJ�UPQ�JQPU\GPJM�NQJKND�DUKJZ�iEHGPJM�IGVUPGD�GQQJPQ�

GLJ�LJIELMJM�GP�PSJUL�JQPU\GPJM�GI]NUQUPUEH�WGDNJ�GP�PSJ�MGPJ�EK�MEHGPUEHZ��

�

TGVUPGD�GQQJPQ�GLJ�MJVLJIUGPJM�NQUH_�PSJ�QPLGU_SP�DUHJ�\JPSEM�EWJL�PSJ�KEDDEFUH_�JQPU\GPJM�NQJKND�DUWJQ�

�

TGVUPGD�GQQJP�IDGQQJQ jUWJQ

kNUDMUH_ lb

mNLHUPNLJ�GHM�KUXPNLJQ �

nGISUHJLY�GHM�J]NUV\JHP o�
�

A6pe,=+:-,2�*;+,=q,+�

�

fSJ�TENHIUDrQ�VEDUIY�VJL\UPQ�J\VDEYJJQ�PE�GIIN\NDGPJ�JGLHJM�ONP�NHNQJM�WGIGPUEH�OJHJKUPQ̂�FSUIS�GLJ�

JDU_UODJ�KEL�VGY\JHP�NVEH�QJVGLGPUEH�KLE\�_EWJLH\JHP�QJLWUIJZ�fSJ�DUGOUDUPY�KEL�QNIS�DJGWJ�UQ�LJVELPJM�GQ�

UHINLLJM�GHM�UHIDNMJM�FUPS�GIIENHPQ�VGYGODJ�GHM�GIILNJM�JXVJHQJQ�UH�PSJ�KUHGHIUGD�QPGPJ\JHPQZ�

�

�

�

�



����������	��
������	����
������
������������

�
����
��������������������

������

�

�

������ �!"##$%&�'(�!)*�)()+$�,�$++'"�,)�*�-'.)+)/!�0+�1�213�45�

�

+6��7�82�9�614�+:6992;2<6�2�1��;�(314�/=32�>�

�

?@A�BCDEAECF�GHCI�JDDKLBAECF�M�NOPQRSPQT�RUQ�VOWXYSZ�[SZZ�\WX]�OWRẐ_T�\Ò�̂�â R̀SYWẐ̀�aẀaOTQ�\̀OP�

bORU�̀QTR̀SYRQ]�cQdedf�̀QTR̀SYRQ]�bOX]�Ò�è̂ XR�àOYQQ]Tg�̂X]�WX̀QTR̀SYRQ]�̀QTOẀYQTd�hX�Ò]Q̀�RO�ŶZYWẐRQ�

RUQ�̂POWXRT�RO�̀QaÒR�̂T�̀QTR̀SYRQ]�M�XQR�aOTSRSOX�̂X]�WX̀QTR̀SYRQ]�M�XQR�aOTSRSOX�SX�RUQ�\SX̂XYŜZ�

TR̂RQPQXRTf�̂�\ZO[�̂TTWPaRSOX�PWTR�bQ�P̂]Q�̂bOWR�RUQ�Ò]Q̀�SX�[USYU�RUQ�̀QTOẀYQT�̂̀Q�YOXTS]Q̀Q]�RO�

bQ�̂aaZSQ]d�hR�ST�RUQ�VOWXYSZiT�aOZSY_�RO�YOXTS]Q̀�̀QTR̀SYRQ]�M�XQR�aOTSRSOX�RO�ÛjQ�bQQX�]QaZQRQ]�bQ\ÒQ�

WX̀QTR̀SYRQ]�M�XQR�aOTSRSOX�ST�̂aaZSQ]d�

�

%�k�13�9�614�/lm�19�9��

�

noCBoE@AJop�GKFqD�CB@oJAEFr�JFq�FCFCB@oJAEFr�o@s@FK@D�JFq�@tB@FD@D�u�v̀OàSQR̂̀_�\WX]T�]STRSXeWSTU�

OaQ̀̂ RSXe�̀QjQXWQT�̂X]�QwaQXTQT�\̀OP�XOXOaQ̀̂ RSXe�SRQPTd�xaQ̀̂ RSXe�̀QjQXWQT�̂X]�QwaQXTQT�eQXQ̀̂ ZZ_�

Q̀TWZR�\̀OP�àOjS]SXe�TQ̀jSYQT�SX�YOXXQYRSOX�[SRU�RUQ�àOàSQR̂̀_�\WX]iT�àSXYSâZ�OXeOSXe�OaQ̀̂ RSOXTd�

yUQ�àSXYSâZ�OaQ̀̂ RSXe�̀QjQXWQT�̂̀Q�bSZZSXeT�̀QẐRQ]�RO�RUQ�ẑ_�VOWXR_�YOXR̀̂YRd�xaQ̀̂ RSXe�QwaQXTQT�

SXYZW]Q�RUQ�YOTR�O\�TQ̀jSYQTf�̂]PSXSTR̀̂RSjQ�QwaQXTQTf�̂X]�]QàQYŜRSOX�OX�ŶaSR̂Z�̂TTQRTd�{ZZ�̀QjQXWQT�

X̂]�QwaQXTQT�XOR�PQQRSXe�RUST�]Q\SXSRSOX�̂̀Q�̀QaÒRQ]�̂T�XOXOaQ̀̂ RSXe�̀QjQXWQT�̂X]�QwaQXTQTd�

�

"9���;�/9�2|6��9�

�

yUQ�àQâ`̂RSOX�O\�\SX̂XYŜZ�TR̂RQPQXRT�SX�YOX\ÒPSR_�[SRU�eQXQ̀̂ ZZ_�̂YYQaRQ]�̂YYOWXRSXe�àSXYSaZQT�

Q̀}WS̀QT�P̂ X̂eQPQXR�RO�P̂~Q�ĵ S̀OWT�QTRSP̂RQTd�{YRŴZ�̀QTWZRT�YOWZ]�]S\\Q̀�\̀OP�RUOTQ�QTRSP̂RQTd�

�

!3�9�=3�1��/k�1�9�

�

�̂ X̂eQPQXR�ÛT�QĵZŴRQ]�TWbTQ}WQXR�QjQXRT�RÙOWeU�RUQ�]̂RQ�RÛR�RUQ�\SX̂XYŜZ�TR̂RQPQXRT�[Q̀Q�

ĵ̂SẐbZQ�RO�bQ�STTWQ]f��̂ ỲU���f�����d�NQQ��ORQ���\Ò�̀QZQĵXR�]STYZOTẀQd�

�

%�<�1�:>�)993�4�614�)|m:�|�1��4�$<<�31�217�-8�1�31<�|�1�9�

�

yUQ��OjQ̀XPQXR̂Z�{YYOWXRSXe�NR̂X]̂ ]̀T�zÔ ]̀�c�{Nzg�ÛT�STTWQ]�RUQ�\OZZO[SXe�TR̂RQPQXRT�RÛR�[SZZ�

bQYOPQ�Q\\QYRSjQ�SX�\WRẀQ�_Q̂ T̀d�yUQTQ�TR̂RQPQXRT�̂̀Q�̂T�\OZZO[T��

�

hX��WXQ�����f��{Nz�STTWQ]�NR̂RQPQXR��Od���f��@JD@Dd�yUQ�Ob�QYRSjQ�O\�RUST�NR̂RQPQXR�ST�RO�bQRRQ̀�PQQR�

RUQ�SX\ÒP̂ RSOX�XQQ]T�O\�\SX̂XYŜZ�TR̂RQPQXR�WTQ̀T�b_�SPàOjSXe�̂YYOWXRSXe�̂X]�\SX̂XYŜZ�̀QaÒRSXe�

\Ò�ZQ̂TQT�b_�eOjQ̀XPQXRTd�yUST�NR̂RQPQXR�SXỲQ̂TQT�RUQ�WTQ\WZXQTT�O\�eOjQ̀XPQXRT��\SX̂XYŜZ�

TR̂RQPQXRT�b_�̀Q}WS̀SXe�̀QYOeXSRSOX�O\�YQ̀R̂SX�ZQ̂TQ�̂TTQRT�̂X]�ZŜbSZSRSQT�\Ò�ZQ̂TQT�RÛR�àQjSOWTZ_�

[Q̀Q�YẐTTS\SQ]�̂T�OaQ̀̂ RSXe�ZQ̂TQT�̂X]�̀QYOeXS�Q]�̂T�SX\ZO[T�O\�̀QTOẀYQT�Ò�OWR\ZO[T�O\�̀QTOẀYQT�

b̂TQ]�OX�â_PQXR�àOjSTSOXT�O\�RUQ�YOXR̀̂YRd�hR�QTR̂bZSTUQT�̂�TSXeZQ�PO]QZ�\Ò�ZQ̂TQ�̂YYOWXRSXe�b̂TQ]�

OX�RUQ�\OWX]̂RSOX̂Z�àSXYSaZQ�RÛR�ZQ̂TQT�̂̀Q�\SX̂XYSXeT�O\�RUQ�̀SeUR�RO�WTQ�̂X�WX]Q̀Z_SXe�̂TTQRd��X]Q̀�

�

�



����������	��
������	����
������
������������

�
����
��������������������

������

�

�

�
���������� !�"����#�������$����"��$��#��"%���&��'�
�����()�

�

*+,+-./0�1223+4�5-4�167/+6+-.+4�8,,93-.:-;�<=9-93-,+6+-.2�>?9-.:-3+4@�

�

ABCD�EAFAGHGIAJ�F�KGDDGG�CD�LGMNCLGO�AP�LGQPRICSG�F�KGFDG�LGQGCTFUKG�FIO�F�OGVGLLGO�CIVKPW�PV�LGDPNLQGDJ�

ABGLGUX�GIBFIQCIR�ABG�LGKGTFIQG�FIO�QPIDCDAGIQX�PV�CIVPLHFACPI�FUPNA�RPTGLIHGIADY�KGFDCIR�

FQACTCACGDZ�[BG�LGMNCLGHGIAD�PV�ABCD�EAFAGHGIA�FLG�GVVGQACTG�VPL�LG\PLACIR�\GLCPOD�UGRCIICIR�FVAGL�]NIG�

_̂J�̀à Ẑ��

�

bI�cFX�̀àaJ�deEf�CDDNGO�deEf�EAFAGHGIA�gPZ��_J�hijklimnonmk�ip�kqn�rppnsktun�vwknj�ip�xnykwtm�

z{kqiytkwktun�|{t}wmsnZ�[BG�\LCHFLX�PU~GQACTG�PV�ABCD�EAFAGHGIA�CD�AP�\LPTCOG�AGH\PLFLX�LGKCGV�AP�

RPTGLIHGIAD�FIO�PABGL�DAF�GBPKOGLD�CI�KCRBA�PV�ABG����b��̂��\FIOGHCQZ�[BFA�PU~GQACTG�CD�

FQQPH\KCDBGO�UX�\PDA\PICIR�ABG�GVVGQACTG�OFAGD�PV�QGLAFCI�\LPTCDCPID�CI�EAFAGHGIAD�FIO�

bH\KGHGIAFACPI�dNCOGD�ABFA�VCLDA�UGQFHG�GVVGQACTG�PL�FLG�DQBGONKGO�AP�UGQPHG�GVVGQACTG�VPL�\GLCPOD�

UGRCIICIR�FVAGL�]NIG�̂_J�̀â�J�FIO�KFAGLZ�

�

[BG��PNIQCK�CD�QNLLGIAKX�GTFKNFACIR�ABG�GVVGQAD�ABFA�ABG�FUPTG�DAFAGHGIAD�WCKK�BFTG�PI�CAD�VCIFIQCFK�

DAFAGHGIADZ�

�

�
������&$��%&���"$&��

�

�+792:.2�5-4�1-�+2.6+-.2�

�

eD�PV�EG\AGHUGL��aJ�̀à Ĵ��̀_aJaaa�PV�ABG��PNIQCK�D�UFI��UFKFIQG�CD�QPTGLGO�UX�VGOGLFK�OG\PDCAPLX�

CIDNLFIQG����b��Z�cPICGD�CITGDAGO�CI�FHPNIAD�RLGFAGL�ABFI�ABG�CIDNLFIQG�QPTGLFRG�FLG�DGQNLGO�UX�

ABG�MNFKCVCGO�\NUKCQ�OG\PDCAPLCGD�\KGORCIR�DGQNLCACGD�WCAB�ABG�EAFAG�[LGFDNLGL�CI�DNQB�FHPNIAD�

LGMNCLGO�UX�ABG��KPLCOF�EGQNLCAX�VPL��NUKCQ��G\PDCAPLCGD�eQAZ�bI�ABG�GTGIA�PV�F�OGVFNKA�PL�CIDPKTGIQX�PV�

F�MNFKCVCGO�\NUKCQ�OG\PDCAPLJ�ABG�EAFAG�[LGFDNLGL�WCKK�CH\KGHGIA�\LPQGONLGD�VPL�\FXHGIA�PV�KPDDGD�

FQQPLOCIR�AP�ABG�TFKCOFAGO�QKFCHD�PV�ABG��PNIQCK�\NLDNFIA�AP�EGQACPI�̀�aZa�J��KPLCOF�EAFANAGDZ��

�

�

?57:.5/�822+.2��

�

[BG�VPKKPWCIR�CD�F�DNHHFLX�PV�QBFIRGD�CI�QF\CAFK�FDDGAD�ONLCIR�ABG�XGFL�GIOGO�EG\AGHUGL��aJ�̀à �̂�

�

EG\AGHUGL��aJ�̀àa eOOCACPID �GKGACPID EG\AGHUGL��aJ�̀à^

fNCKOCIR ������������������������������������ Ĵ��aJ___������ ���������������������� Ĵ��aJ___�������������������

cFQBCIGLX�FIO�GMNC\HGIA J̀��̀���������������������������� �Jâa��������������� ������������������������ âJ��̀�������������������������

�NLICANLG�FIO�VC�ANLGD ������������������������������������� J̀��a��������������� ������������������������ J̀��a����������������������������

�PIDALNQACPI�CI�\LPRLGDD ��J�̀� ������������������������� ���J�̀������������ �������������������������������������

��GDD�FQQNHNKFAGO�OG\LGQCFACPI �̀J̀����������������������������� ���������������������� ������������������������ �̀J��̀���������������������������

����gGA�QF\CAFK�FDDGAD ��J�̀������������������������� Ĵ��aJ��������� ���J�̀����������� Ĵ��̂J̀�_�������������������

�
�G\LGQCFACPI�G�\GIDG�PV������WFD�LGQPLOGO�ONLCIR�ABG�XGFL�GIOGO�EG\AGHUGL��aJ�̀à Ẑ�



����������	��
������	����
������
������������

�
����
��������������������

�������

�

�

�
�������� �!����"����#�
�����$%�

�

&'()*+,-.�/,01�2(3�&42045414,6�
�

789:�;<=<>?:�

�

@A�BCDEF�G�H�I�I�H�JKL�MNOAPEF�QCCFELR�SND�QAR�TQU�QTQDRLR�Q�CDNVEUUNDW�ANJL�JKDNOXK�JKL�YQWPKLPZ�

YDNJLPJENA�YDNXDQV�NS�[\]HGG��SND�JKL�CODCNUL�NS�DLJQEAEAX�LVCFNWLLU�RODEAX�JKL�M@̂ _̀a�b�CQARLVEPc�

dNQA�DLCQWVLAJU�QDL�RLSLDDLR�SND�JLA�VNAJKU�CLAREAX�CNUUEeFL�SNDXEfLALUUc�gASNDXEfLA�CDNPLLRU�NS�JKL�

ANJL�QDL�JN�eL�CQER�EA�VNAJKFW�EAUJQFFVLAJU�NS�CDEAPECQF�QAR�EAJLDLUJ�eLXEAAEAX�hLeDOQDW�IiH�I�II�TEJK�

QA�EAJLDLUJ�DQJL�NS��j�QAR�VQJODEJW�RQJL�NS�BCDEF�I�H�I�Ikc�BJ�lLCJLVeLD�G�H�I�I��JKL�CDEAPECQF�

NOJUJQAREAX�NA�JKL�ANJL�TQU�[\]HGG�c�mKLDL�TLDL�AN�CDEAPECQF�ND�EAJLDLUJ�CQWVLAJU�VQRL�RODEAX�JKL�

WLQD�LAREAX�lLCJLVeLD�G�H�I�I�c�

�

�
��n����"�"o������������p�

�

mKL�MNOAPEF�EU�UOeUJQAJEQFFW�SOARLR�eW�JQqLU�PNFFLPJLR�eW�JKL�rQW�MNOAJW�mNODEUJ�̀LfLFNCVLAJ�MNOAPEF�

CDNfERLR�JKDNOXK�Q�PNAJDQPJ�TEJK�JKL�MNOAPEF�QAR�JKL�rQW�MNOAJW�rNQDR�NS�MNOAJW�MNVVEUUENALDUc�_S�JKEU�

PNAJDQPJ�TLDL�JN�eL�REUPNAJEAOLRH�EJ�TNOFR�KQfL�Q�VQJLDEQF�EVCQPJ�NA�JKL�SEAQAPEQF�NCLDQJENAU�NS�JKL�

MNOAPEFc�BU�NS�lLCJLVeLD�G�H�I�I�H�rQW�MNOAJW�EU�VQEAJQEAEAX�SOARU�NS�[�Hb\iHs�k�DLFQJLR�JN�JQqLU�

PNFFLPJLR�SND�JKL�YQAQVQ�MEJW�mNODEUJ�̀LfLFNCVLAJ�mQq�̀EUJDEPJc��̀ODEAX�SEUPQF�WLQD�LARLR�lLCJLVeLD�G�H�

I�I�H�JKL�MNOAPEF�CQER�rQW�MNOAJW�MFLDZ�[G�H\iG�SND�QRVEAEUJDQJENA�PNUJU�NS�PNFFLPJEAX�JKL�YQAQVQ�MEJW�

mNODEUJ�̀LfLFNCVLAJ�mQqc�

�

�
��t��u�! ����� u�p��u �� ���"���

�

mKL�MNVVEUUENALDU�NS�JKL�MEJW�NS�YQAQVQ�MEJW�vMEJWw�ULDfL�QU�SEfL�NS�JKL�ULfLA�VLVeLDU�NS�JKL�rNQDR�

NS�JKL�MNOAPEFc�mKL�QPPNOAJEAX�UJQSS�NS�JKL�MEJW�QFUN�CDNfERLU�QPPNOAJEAX�ULDfEPLU�SND�JKL�MNOAPEFc�

ÒDEAX�JKL�WLQD�LARLR�lLCJLVeLD�G�H�I�I�H�JKL�MNOAPEF�CQER�JKL�MEJW�[�GHs���SND�QPPNOAJEAX�ULDfEPLUc�

BU�NS�lLCJLVeLD�G�H�I�I�H�[�GHs���EU�ROL�JN�JKL�MEJW�SND�QPPNOAJEAX�ULDfEPLUc�

�

�

�
��x���"����y���p�u���uz��

�

mKL�rQW�MNOAJW�rNQDR�NS�MNOAJW�MNVVEUUENALDU�VQEAJQEAU�Q�PNAJEAXLAPW�DLULDfL�SND�JKL�MNOAPEFc�mKL�

DLULDfL�EU�SOARLR�eW�QFF�QAAOQF�OAQCCDNCDEQJLR�PQUK�PQDDWSNDTQDR�QVNOAJU�SDNV�JNODEUJ�RLfLFNCVLAJ�

JQq�DLfLAOLU�QAR�QAW�PODDLAJ�WLQD�JNODEUJ�RLfLFNCVLAJ�JQq�DLfLAOLU�QCCDNfLR�SND�DLULDfQJENAc�{N�

VQqEVOV�DLULDfL�QVNOAJ�KQU�eLLA�ULJc�mKL�DLULDfL�TEFF�eL�SOARLR�JN�Q�eQFQAPL�NS�[s��H���H�SDNV�Q�

CNDJENA�NS�QAAOQF�JQq�DLPLECJUH�FEVEJLR�JN�AN�FLUU�JKQA���j�AND�VNDL�JKQA��sj�NS�QAAOQF�DLPLECJUc�@APL�

VLJH�JKL�eQFQAPL�UKNOFR�ANJ�eL�DLROPLR�eLFNT�[s��H���c�mKEU�DLULDfL�VQW�eL�QPPLUULR�eW�JKL�MNOAPEF�

TEJK�QCCDNfQF�NS�JKL�rQW�MNOAJW�rNQDR�NS�MNOAJW�MNVVEUUENALDUc�hOARU�VQW�eL�QPPLUULR�EA�JKL�LfLAJ�

NS�Q�REUQUJLD�ND�OAQAJEPECQJLR�QRfLDUL�PEDPOVUJQAPLUH�JN�VEAEVE|L�RLSEPEJ�SEAQAPEAX�NS�PQCEJQF�CDN}LPJUH�ND�

JN�QRRDLUU�JKL�ALLRU�SDNV�NJKLD�OAQAJEPECQJLR�CDNeFLVU�ND�NCCNDJOAEJELUc�BU�NS�lLCJLVeLD�G�H�I�I�H�

JKL�MNOAJW~U�DLULDfL�eQFQAPL�TQU�[s��H���c�



����������	��
������	����
������
������������

�
����
��������������������

�������

�

�

�
���������� !�� ����

�

"#�$%&'(�)*)*+�,(-�./&01�2-%0,(�3&4%#56%,5/#�7%1-�,(-�%88-887-#,�,(%,�,(-�/9,:&-%;�/<�,(-�#/=-0�

'/&/#%=5&98�>?3@"A��BC�'%#�:-�'(%&%',-&56-1�%8�%�D%#1-75'E�F8�%�&-890,+�9#'-&,%5#,5-8�(%=-�%&58-#�,(%,�

7%G�(%=-�%�854#5<5'%#,�#-4%,5=-�57D%',�/#�,(-�/#4/5#4�/D-&%,5#4�%',5=5,5-8�%#1�,(-�<9,9&-�&-890,8�/<�,(-�

?/9#'50E�H(-�/''9&&-#'-�%#1�-I,-#,�/<�89'(�%#�57D%',�J500�1-D-#1�/#�<9,9&-�1-=-0/D7-#,8+�5#'0915#4�>5C�

,(-�%#1�8D&-%1�/<�,(-�=5&98+�>55C�4/=-&#7-#,�K9%&%#,5#-�7-%89&-8+�>555C�=/09#,%&G�%#1�D&-'%9,5/#%&G�

&-8,&5',5/#8�/#�,&%=-0�/&�7--,5#48+�>5=C�,(-�-<<-',8�/#�,(-�<5#%#'5%0�7%&;-,8+�%#1�>=C�,(-�-<<-',8�/#�,(-�

-'/#/7G�/=-&%00+�%00�/<�J(5'(�%&-�9#'-&,%5#�%8�/<�$%&'(���+�)*))E�

�

�L ��M����N��O��� ��P�� ��

�

"#�Q-:&9%&G�)*))+�,(-�#/,-�D%G%:0-�/<�RST+UU*�,(&/94(�,(-�V%G'(-';�V&/,-',5/#�V&/4&%7�J%8�</&45=-#E�



���������	
�	����




�������

����	�����
�����
������	�
�����
��������
�������������������	�
����

��������	�����������
������

�������������������
�������������

�
�
����
��	�����������������������
�������� ��!�"#$%!%���&!"�$"�$&�

'()*+�(,�-.*/01(*2�

3)4)5)�6.17�6(5584.17�-/9/:(;5/41�6(840.:<�=40>�

3)4)5)�6.17<�?:(*.+)�

@/�A)9/�)8+.1/+<�.4�)00(*+)40/�B.1A�1A/�)8+.1.4C�21)4+)*+2�C/4/*)::7�)00/;1/+�.4�1A/�D4.1/+�

E1)1/2�(,�F5/*.0)�)4+�1A/�21)4+)*+2�);;:.0)G:/�1(�,.4)40.):�)8+.12�0(41).4/+�.4�HIJKLMNKMO�

PQRSOSMT�UOVMRVLRW�.228/+�G7�1A/�6(5;1*(::/*�X/4/*):�(,�1A/�D4.1/+�E1)1/2<�1A/�,.4)40.):�

21)1/5/412�(,�1A/�G82.4/22�17;/�)01.9.1./2�(,�1A/�3)4)5)�6.17�6(5584.17�-/9/:(;5/41�

6(840.:<�=40>�Y)�4(4;*(,.1�(*C)4.Z)1.(4[<�)�0(5;(4/41�(,�')7�6(8417<�?:(*.+)<�)2�(,�)4+�,(*�1A/�

7/)*�/4+/+�E/;1/5G/*�\]<��]��<�)4+�1A/�*/:)1/+�4(1/2�1(�,.4)40.):�21)1/5/412<�BA.0A�

0(::/01.9/:7�0(5;*.2/�1A/�3)4)5)�6.17�6(5584.17�-/9/:(;5/41�6(840.:<�=40>̂2�G)2.0�,.4)40.):�

21)1/5/412�)2�:.21/+�.4�1A/�1)G:/�(,�0(41/412<�)4+�A)9/�.228/+�(8*�*/;(*1�1A/*/(4�+)1/+�_)*0A�

��<��]��>�

�̀abc̀de��f̀acfe�gbc��h̀d̀ihde��bjfcah̀k�

=4�;:)44.4C�)4+�;/*,(*5.4C�(8*�)8+.1�(,�1A/�,.4)40.):�21)1/5/412<�B/�0(42.+/*/+�1A/�3)4)5)�

6.17�6(5584.17�-/9/:(;5/41�6(840.:<�=40>̂2�.41/*4):�0(41*(:�(9/*�,.4)40.):�*/;(*1.4C�Y.41/*4):�

0(41*(:[�)2�)�G)2.2�,(*�+/2.C4.4C�)8+.1�;*(0/+8*/2�1A)1�)*/�);;*(;*.)1/�.4�1A/�0.*08521)40/2�

,(*�1A/�;8*;(2/�(,�/l;*/22.4C�(8*�(;.4.(42�(4�1A/�,.4)40.):�21)1/5/412<�G81�4(1�,(*�1A/�

;8*;(2/�(,�/l;*/22.4C�)4�(;.4.(4�(4�1A/�/,,/01.9/4/22�(,�1A/�3)4)5)�6.17�6(5584.17�

-/9/:(;5/41�6(840.:<�=40>̂2�.41/*4):�0(41*(:>�F00(*+.4C:7<�B/�+(�4(1�/l;*/22�)4�(;.4.(4�(4�

1A/�/,,/01.9/4/22�(,�1A/�3)4)5)�6.17�6(5584.17�-/9/:(;5/41�6(840.:<�=40>̂2�.41/*4):�0(41*(:>�

F�RKmSnSKMno�SM�SMOKLMVp�nIMOLIp�/l.212�BA/4�1A/�+/2.C4�(*�(;/*)1.(4�(,�)�0(41*(:�+(/2�4(1�)::(B�

5)4)C/5/41�(*�/5;:(7//2<�.4�1A/�4(*5):�0(8*2/�(,�;/*,(*5.4C�1A/.*�)22.C4/+�,8401.(42<�1(�

;*/9/41<�(*�+/1/01�)4+�0(**/01<�5.221)1/5/412�(4�)�1.5/:7�G)2.2>�F�NVOKLSVp�qKVrMKWW�.2�)�

+/,.0./407<�(*�)�0(5G.4)1.(4�(,�+/,.0./40./2<�.4�.41/*4):�0(41*(:<�280A�1A)1�1A/*/�.2�)�*/)2(4)G:/�

;(22.G.:.17�1A)1�)�5)1/*.):�5.221)1/5/41�(,�1A/�/41.17̂2�,.4)40.):�21)1/5/412�B.::�4(1�G/�

;*/9/41/+<�(*�+/1/01/+�)4+�0(**/01/+<�(4�)�1.5/:7�G)2.2>�F�WSTMSmSnVMO�RKmSnSKMno�.2�)�

+/,.0./407<�(*�)�0(5G.4)1.(4�(,�+/,.0./40./2<�.4�.41/*4):�0(41*(:�1A)1�.2�:/22�2/9/*/�1A)4�)�

5)1/*.):�B/)s4/22<�7/1�.5;(*1)41�/4(8CA�1(�5/*.1�)11/41.(4�G7�1A(2/�0A)*C/+�B.1A�

C(9/*4)40/>�

t8*�0(42.+/*)1.(4�(,�.41/*4):�0(41*(:�B)2�,(*�1A/�:.5.1/+�;8*;(2/�+/20*.G/+�.4�1A/�,.*21�

;)*)C*);A�(,�1A.2�2/01.(4�)4+�B)2�4(1�+/2.C4/+�1(�.+/41.,7�)::�+/,.0./40./2�.4�.41/*4):�0(41*(:�



�������

������	
����������	�����������������	
�	�	��������	�	���	�����	�����������	�	���	�������	�
�

������	������	������	����	����������	�	���	���	��	��������������������������	���������

����	���������������������������	��������������������	����������������������	����	�	����

� !"#$%&'(�%&)�*+,(-�.%++(-/�

0��1����������	�	�
�������������������������������������2������3	���3�����	���

4�����1�����3����	���5���6���	����	�����������������������������	����	���������������

1����������������	������1�	������	�������	��1��	�	��������������
����	�������������������


�����
���������������1�	������	�����	�����������������	������������	�����������������

�	����	�����������������������1��	�	�
�����1	�	���������1�	������	���������1��	�	��������

���������7���	������������	������������	�
����������������1�������������1	�	����8�������������

����������	�����������	������������������1�	����������������������������9�	���������

�1����������:;<=>?@=?A�BCDEAE?F�GAH?DH>DI��

JK-" /(� L�+,$/�M(" -+�

8���1�1���������	���1���	����������������	����������1������������	�
����	������������������

���1�	��������������������������������	�
�������������1��	�������1	�	����������������	�������

����������	��6��	����������������������1�	������8�	���1���	�����	���
���1������������	��

1�������	�������������	���:;<=>?@=?A�BCDEAE?F�GAH?DH>DI�	������	��	�
��������	��6��

	���������������������1�	������0����	�
������	��������	���	���	��������	������������������

1�1�����

3��	�	���2���	��0�����������

2������3	���N������O��	���

P��������QRQQ�



 
Board Composition & Slate of Officers 

 

Panama City Community Development Council 
dba Destination Panama City 

Agenda Item Summary 

1. PRESENTER NAME: 
Jennifer M. Vigil  
President & CEO 

2. MEETING DATE: 
 
4/12/2022 

3. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Three motions required: 
Motion to acknowledge Nirav Banker as Board Chairman for remainder of fiscal year. 
Motion to accept Scott Pilla, General Manager of Marriott Townplace Suites, as new “Large Hotel Board 
Member”. 
Motion to nominate another Board Member as Vice Chairman. 
 

4. AGENDA 
 

PRESENTATION   
PUBLIC HEARING   
CONSENT   
REGULAR   

5.  IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES  NO  IF NO, STATE ACTION REQUIRED  N/A 
      BUDGET ACTION:   
      FINANCIAL IMPACT SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
 
     DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

6.  BACKGROUND:  (WHY IS THE ACTION NECESSARY, WHAT ACTION WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED, (WHO, WHERE, WHEN & HOW) 

 
On March 29, 2022, Chairman Jennine Brown resigned her position on the Destination Panama City Board.  
She stated it had been her pleasure to work with all of us.  Vice Chairman Banker was immediately notified that 
he would be needed to fill the remainder of her term effective immediately.  
 
Ms. Brown’s departure created a vacancy on the Board for the position of “Large Hotel Board Member”.  Which 
requires a GM or owner with a property over 100 rooms.  Scott Pilla, General Manager of Marriott Townplace 
Suites, meets the criteria required in the organizational By-Laws and actively participates in Partner 
Engagement activities.  CEO Vigil met with Mr. Pilla and explained the duties, time commitment, public 
information laws, and political ethics laws.  Mr. Pilla understands all of the requirements and is willing to serve 
on the board.  
 
If Mr. Pilla is approved by the Board, CEO Vigil recommends selecting another existing Board Member to fill 
the position of Vice Chairman for the remainder of the fiscal year.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Ratify RFP Approval and Authorize Funds 

 

Panama City Community Development Council 
dba Destination Panama City 

Agenda Item Summary 

1. PRESENTER NAME: 
Jennifer M. Vigil  
President & CEO 

2. MEETING DATE: 
 
4/12/2022 

3. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Board ratify the RFP published by CEO Vigil on Monday, April 10, 2022 for Grant Writing & Administrative 
Services and authorize CEO Vigil to negotiate task order services (billable hours) for the identified projects not 
to exceed $50,000 in FY21. 
 

4. AGENDA 
 

PRESENTATION   
PUBLIC HEARING   
CONSENT   
REGULAR   

5.  IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES  NO  IF NO, STATE ACTION REQUIRED  N/A 
      BUDGET ACTION:   
      FINANCIAL IMPACT SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
 
     DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

6.  BACKGROUND:  (WHY IS THE ACTION NECESSARY, WHAT ACTION WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED, (WHO, WHERE, WHEN & HOW) 

 
At the last regular Destination Panama City Board Meeting, held on February 8, 2022, after receiving the 
recommendations from Eric Olson, with the Huddle Group, related to the future of Sports Tourism in Panama 
City, the Board directed CEO Vigil to pursue Grant Writing services to help with ongoing projects.  CEO Vigil 
prepared the attached RFP for Grant Writing & Administrative Services and presented it to Acting Chairman 
Nirav Banker for approval.  Upon his approval the RFP was published publicly on April 10, 2022.  
 
The current ongoing projects identified in the RFP are related to the St. Andrews School and Sports Tourism 
initiatives. Funding for special projects such as this was included within the current budget and no Budget 
Amendments need to be requested, however, the $50,000 exceeds CEO Vigil’s spending authority since the 
projects were not specifically recognized during the budget process.  
 
Staff requests ratification of Approval to Advertise the RFP and authorize CEO Vigil to access up to $50,000 for 
this portion of the aforementioned projects.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

 

Bid No: 20220406  

Start Date: April 11, 2022 (9:00AM)  

End Date: May 6, 2022 (2:00PM)  

Facilitator: Jennifer Vigil 
 

Request for Proposal: 20220406 Grant Writing and Administrative 
Services 
Notice is hereby given that Destination Panama City (Panama City Community Development Council, 
Inc) is issuing this request for proposal(RFP) to solicit competitive sealed bids from professional grant 
writing and administrative professional contractors that are interested in providing their services for 
Destination Panama City’s varied efforts in product development initiatives within the city limits of 
the City of Panama City, Florida. Product development initiatives include, but are not limited to: St 
Andrews School Creative & Cultural Initiatives and Sports Tourism Development.  Links to related 
reports here:  

St Andrews School Creative & Cultural Initiatives 
Sports Tourism Development Strategic Study 

All bids are solicited and shall be made pursuant to the Destination Panama City (PCCDC) Purchasing 
Policy Manual. All bids will be evaluated in accordance thereof. The Destination Panama City (PCCDC) 
Purchasing Policy Manual is on file at the President & CEO Office of Destination Panama City 
(PCCDC), 101 West Beach Drive, Panama City, FL 32401 

It is the intent and purpose of Destination Panama City that this RFP promotes competitive selection. 
It is the bidders’ responsibility to advice the President & CEO of any language, requirements, etc., or 
any combination thereof, which inadvertently restricts or limits the requirements stated in this RFP. 

Notice shall be posted on the DestinationPanamaCity.com website and can be obtained by request 
via email from Jennifer@DestinationPanamaCity.com 

SUBMIT BIDS TO:  Jennifer Vigil, President & CEO 
101 West Beach Drive 
Panama City, FL 32401 

ALL BIDS MUST BE RECEIVED BY 2:00PM, MAY 6, 2022 
BIDS WILL BE OPENED PUBLICLY AT 2:15PM, MAY 6, 2022 

Destination Panama City reserves the right to reject any one or all proposals, or any 
part of any proposal, to waive any informality in any proposal, and to award a contract  

deemed to be in the best interest of the organization. 
    



 
NTTW Proclamation 

 

Panama City Community Development Council 
dba Destination Panama City 

Agenda Item Summary 

1. PRESENTER NAME: 
Jennifer M. Vigil  
President & CEO 

2. MEETING DATE: 
 
4/12/2022 

3. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Recognize National Travel and Tourism Week with a proclamation and encourage the public to attend the 
Destination Panama City Tourism Appreciation Day on May 6, 2022. 
 

4. AGENDA 
 

PRESENTATION   
PUBLIC HEARING   
CONSENT   
REGULAR   

5.  IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES  NO  IF NO, STATE ACTION REQUIRED  N/A 
      BUDGET ACTION:   
      FINANCIAL IMPACT SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
 
     DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

6.  BACKGROUND:  (WHY IS THE ACTION NECESSARY, WHAT ACTION WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED, (WHO, WHERE, WHEN & HOW) 

 
National Travel and Tourism Week is May 1 -7, 2022. 
 
With tourism being the #1 economic driver in the State of Florida and in Bay County, it is important to 
recognizer the Travel and Tourism Industry members, stakeholders, and citizens of the destinations. A 
proclamation has been prepared for the Chairman to read.  
 
Every year, as part of National Travel and Tourism Week, Destination Panama City hosts a free event for the 
public to express our appreciation for their encouragement, support, and the hard work they put into making 
Panama City a great place to live and thereby a great place to visit.  On May 6, 2022, Destination Panama City 
will host our Tourism Appreciation Day event at the Visitor’s Center, located at 101 West Beach Drive in 
downtown Panama City. The event will run from 11am – 2pm. It will feature 3-4 food trucks and live music. 
Destination Panama City has worked with the food trucks to be able to offer a free lunch to anyone that 
registers at the registration booth onsite.  
 
 
 
 

 



atà|ÉÇtÄ gÜtäxÄ 9 gÉâÜ|áÅ jxx~ 

cÜÉvÄtÅtà|ÉÇ 

WHEREAS the Power of Travel has been a consistent driver of Panama City’s economy and workforce.

WHEREAS a robust travel industry provides significant economic benefits for the State of Florida with

Governor DeSantis recognizing Florida welcomed 118 Million travelers in 2021; not only surpassing pre

pandemic levels but reaching the highest levels in history.

WHEREAS travel has been the foundation of a healthy workforce, serving as one of the largest private

sector employers in Bay County with 1 out of every 8 citizens being part of the tourism industry.

WHEREAS spending by travelers aided Panama City lodging partners to generate more than $46 Million

in lodging revenue in FY21.

WHEREAS travel and tourism dependent businesses and organizations, 83% of which are small

businesses, are responsible for welcoming visitors from all around the world to explore Panama City and

all our country has to offer.

WHEREAS the travel industry in Panama City has been resilient through multiple natural disasters, an

international pandemic, and wildfires by not only returning to pre Hurricane Michael leisure and

business travel – but exceeding it.

WHEREAS the Destination Panama City organization, responsible for the promotion and marketing of

Panama City had organizational goals to increase the annual tourist development tax revenue by 5%

annually – and in only six (6) years met their ten (10) year target.

WHEREAS the Power of Travel will continue to help Panama City write the Greatest Recovery Story Ever

Told and become a prosperous premier City in Northwest Florida.

Therefore, I, Nirav Banker, as Chairman of Destination Panama City, do hereby recognize National Travel

and Tourism Week in Panama City as May 1 7, 2022, and urge the citizens of Panama City to join me on

May 6, 2022 in celebrating the travel and tourism industry at our local Tourism Appreciation Day event.

_________________________________

Nirav Banker, Chairman / Date



 
Sports & Events Liaison Coordinator 

 

Panama City Community Development Council 
dba Destination Panama City 

Agenda Item Summary 

1. PRESENTER NAME: 
Jennifer M. Vigil  
President & CEO 

2. MEETING DATE: 
 
4/12/2022 

3. REQUESTED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Board Approve Sports & Events Liaison Coordinator Position Description and authorize CEO Vigil to advertise 
and fill the position immediately. 

4. AGENDA 
 

PRESENTATION   
PUBLIC HEARING   
CONSENT   
REGULAR   

5.  IS THIS ITEM BUDGETED (IF APPLICABLE)?:  YES  NO  IF NO, STATE ACTION REQUIRED  N/A 
      BUDGET ACTION:   
      FINANCIAL IMPACT SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
 
     DETAILED ANALYSIS ATTACHED?:  YES  NO  

6.  BACKGROUND:  (WHY IS THE ACTION NECESSARY, WHAT ACTION WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED, (WHO, WHERE, WHEN & HOW) 

 
At the February 8, 2022 Destination Panama City Board Meeting, recommendations from Eric Olson, Principle 
at Huddle Up Group, included immediate, short-term, and long-term initiatives. The most immediate of which 
was the creation of a sports / events liaison that could not only help attract events, but assist the event rights 
holders with navigating the myriad of stakeholders and facility owners involved in hosting events in Panama 
City area.  
 
Pursuant to Board direction, CEO Vigil created a position description (attached) and met with Panama City – 
City Manager Mark McQueen to discuss cost sharing of the position. A verbal agreement was reached that the 
position would report directly to CEO Vigil at Destination Panama City but that a portion of that position (up to 
50%) would be funded by the City of Panama City effective October 1, 2022. Destination Panama City would 
fund the entirety of the position expenses for current FY21. Upon completion of the position description, and in 
the current staffing climate, CEO Vigil believes the starting salary will be approximately $45,000. She has sent a 
request to the City of Panama City to formalize an agreement where the City would pay $25,000 annually, and 
Destination Panama City would pay the remaining portion of the salary expenses (including any annual 
increases, benefits, workers comp, and payroll taxes).  A formal agreement will need to be drafted and brought 
back before this board for approval before a candidate can formally be hired for the position.  
 
This agenda item is only to approve the position description, authorize advertisement, and hire (100% for FY21 
assessed to Destination Panama City) while CEO Vigil continues to work on formalizing the split position details 
with the City of Panama City. 
 
 
 
 

 



Position Title: Sports & Special Events Liaison Coordinator

Organization: Destination Panama City (PCCDC)

Location: Panama City, Florida – this is not a remote position and travel is required.

Employment Type: Full time Exempt

Organizational Website: https://DestinationPanamaCity.com

OVERVIEW: Destination Panama City is a Destination Marketing Organization with responsibility for

devising and implementing strategies to promote and market Panama City as a premier travel

destination. In the midst of a city wide rebuild, the particular focus for this position is on developing

exceptional sporting and cultural events, to include, but not limited to sporting tournaments and

cultural experiences / exhibitions.

GOALS:

 Attract and secure high value events.

 Maximize yield from the tourism economy.

 Build a sustainable events calendar for Panama City.

 Provide superior customer service for Event Rights Holders, Participants, and Attendees.

DUTIES:

 Serve as the liaison between event organizers, Destination Panama City, local government

agencies.

 Build positive partnership with stakeholders through active and consistent engagement.

 Monitor and evaluate business processes, systems and procedures to identify best practices that

will encourage future event planners to consider Panama City.

 Contribute to the creation of strategies to attract and retain high quality events.

 Contribute to the creation of strategies to minimize the impacts on non event communities and

report to the CEO of any issues of concern.

 Prepare communications material and information updates to increase community

understanding and awareness.

 Work with CEO to prepare responses for media inquiry or public relations initiatives.

 Foster a collaborative team environment, focused on service delivery to both internal and

external stakeholders.

 Proactively keep up to date with industry and world events that may impact Destination Panama

City’s organizational goals and strategic objectives.

 Actively participate as a Destination Panama City team member by contributing to and

undertaking special projects and activities as required.



 Update and ensure the stakeholder database accurately reflects internal and external contact

information.

 Apply a high degree of analytical problem solving and reasoning skills to operate effectively and

efficiently. Identify key issues and take action to resolve concerning situations at an early stage.

 Coordinate and manage the project either individually or participate within teams.

 Develop reports, analyses, briefings, planning documentation and other forms of ongoing

program performance.

SKILLS AND COMPETENCIES:

 Miscrosoft Word, Excel, and PowerPoint

 Adobe Creative Suite

 Excellent interpersonal relationship building

 Proven ability to think strategically

 Negotiation and facilitation skills, creative and innovative thinking

 Experience handling confidential information in development of events

 Basic understanding of local government structure

 Understanding of legal and contractual requirements, documentation in relation to event

management, including risk management and assessment

 Sound experience in professional communications

 Strong research and report writing and public speaking skills

 Self motivated, efficient, positive personal disposition

Application packages must include a relevant cover letter, resume, and examples of past event

experience. All application packages should be emailed as one document to:

Jennifer@DestinationPanamaCity.com


